
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

November 18, 2015 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 7
Warrants

Accounts Payable 10
Water Conservation Leak Notification Report

Leak Notification Report 21
Monthly Investment Report Ending November 30, 2015

Investment Report 27
Resolution Designating City Manager John Kunkel as an
Additional Check Signer for City Bank Accounts

Staff Report - City Manager as Check Signer 29
Resolution Appointing Members to the Planning Commission
and Announcement of Votes

Staff Report - Planning Commission Appointments 31
Resolution Approving the Purchase of Easements for the
Vineland Avenue Widening Project and Accepting the
Easements  for Public Use

Staff Report - Vineland Easements 44

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, December 16, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on the 
agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Presentation of New POW/MIA Flag from the VFW Post 8470 (MR) 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

  

2



 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: November 18, 2015   
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: November 8, 2015 - November 21, 2015: $129,995.13; Overtime: 
$4,140.08; Holiday OT at 1/2: $1,466.72; Standby: $1,440.05: Comp Time Earned: 47.25      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 7619-7700: $328,639.94 
2. Excepting - Sebastian: #7658-$205.00; #7695-$2,698.64 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Water Conservation Leak Notification Report (KM) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational Only     
 

ATTACHMENTS: Leak Notification Report     
 

E. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending November 30, 2015 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment report as presented     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Investment Report     
 

F. SUBJECT: Resolution Designating City Manager John Kunkel as an Additional Check 
Signer for City Bank Accounts (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution authorizing City Manager John 
Kunkel as an additional check signer for City bank accounts and removing temporary 
appointment of Councilwoman Armstrong.     
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - City Manager as Check Signer      

3



 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
 None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Appointing Members to the Planning Commission and 
Announcement of Votes (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution appointing three applicants to 
the Planning Commission for three-year terms ending December 31, 2018. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Planning Commission Appointments   
 

B. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving the Purchase of Easements for the Vineland Avenue 
Widening Project and Accepting the Easements  for Public Use (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution approving the purchase of 
easements for the Vineland Avenue Widening Project and accepting the easements for 
public use. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Vineland Easements   
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

None 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 
Agenda packet is available for review 72 hours prior to the meeting at the city clerk’s office and on the 
city website. Items received at the meeting will be available for review at the city clerk’s office. 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

4



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, December 2, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Attorney Cantú, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, 
Finance Director, Public Works Director 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain 
if needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome - Mayor  

• Call to Order 6:35 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 
except BN  

• Invocation  

• Pledge of Allegiance - City Clerk  

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS  

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 6:38 p.m. BN 
arrived 

A. Kerman Police Department (JKB)  

1. Presentation of Life Saving Awards to Officer Erika Rodriquez and Tom 
Chapman 

Presented  

2. Swearing-In of Reserve Officer Kevin Gill and Lieutenant John Golden Performed 

B. Swearing-In of City Manager John Kunkel (SH) Performed 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL None 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR Approved 
GY/BN (5-0-0) 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes – November 18, 2015  

B. SUBJECT: Payroll  

Payroll Report: October 25, 2015 - November 7, 2015: $130,592.02; Retro 
Pay & Other: $898.17; Overtime: $5,999.43; Standby: $1,188.07; Comp 
Time Earned: 13.50      

 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants   

Nos 7555-7618: $236,847.60       

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting Public Pedestrian Easement as Part of Site 
Plan Review No. 15-03 for Valley Health Team Parking Lot Expansion (JJ) 

Res 15-68 

5



 
 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting Rights of Way and Easements as Part of 
Conditional Use Permit No. 12-02 for the Mid Valley Disposal Expansion (JJ) 
 

 
 
 
Res 15-69 

F. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S. 
Goldenrod Avenue and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue (JJ) 

Res 15-70 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Decorations for Kannami Tree Lighting Ceremony (JK) Approved to 
spend no more 
than $3,500 
BN/GY (5-0-0) 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

7. CLOSED SESSION None 

8. ADJOURNMENT 7:26 p.m. 
Approved 
BN/GY (5-0-0) 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: December 3, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



Leak Notification Page 1 of 6

House #
Meter 

Serial #
Present 

Read Notice #
648 16TH CT 9252851 1790 1
774 S 16TH ST 9253094 948 1
669 S 17TH CT 9253065 1202 1

15905 W B ST 9369310 1215 1
15814 W BOTELHO AVE 10427776 742 1
15859 W BOTELHO AVE 9369152 818 1

560 BURGUNDY ST 9252995 1368 1
599 BURGUNDY ST 9253048 1230 1

14570 W CALIFORNIA A 9073498 3531 1
15747 W CALIFORNIA A 9369369 1701 1
14382 W CHAD CT 9253108 1450 1
15964 W E ST 9419939 1555 1
14451 W EL MAR AVE 9253307 2311 1
14532 W EL MAR AVE 9369415 1072 1
14248 W G ST 9253004 1189 1
16027 W GENTRY AVE 10427676 1211 1

597 GURDWARA AVE 9253049 1473 1
825 S JOSEPH AVE 9149667 1357 1

15437 W KEARNEY BLVD 10247745 5401 1
15668 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419888 2060 1
1081 S MADERA AVE 10422026 1010 1
1705 S MADERA AVE 12294831 97 1
599 MCKENNA CT 9252852 1133 1
215 S MERLOT AVE 9252846 1566 1

15411 W MIDDLETON AV 9419974 1081 1
14559 PALM CT 9369138 1181 1

276 S PARK AVE 9369313 1434 1
443 S PARK AVE 9252479 1340 1

15602 W SAN JOAQUIN 9369317 1247 1
602 S SISKIYOU AVE 10427690 301 1

14535 W STANISLAUS A 9253217 1579 1
14467 W SUNSET AVE 9252797 2302 1

264 S SUSAN AVE 9252757 1506 1
14059 W TAYLOR ST 9252904 2223 1

557 WALNUT CT 9419996 972 1
14290 W B ST 9369453 1075 2
15793 W B ST 9369347 948 2
15838 W BOTELHO AVE 9369131 824 2

517 BURGUNDY ST 9252999 2026 2
15650 W CALIFORNIA A 9252704 1789 2
14344 W E ST 9252984 1537 2
15894 W EL MAR AVE 10427931 1039 2
14299 W F ST 9252828 1630 2
14474 W G ST 9253023 671 2

Street Address

October 29, 2015 Meter Reading

21



Leak Notification Page 2 of 6

House #
Meter 

Serial #
Present 

Read Notice #Street Address
574 GURDWARA AVE 9253047 2076 2

14178 W KEARNEY BLVD 10428463 34 2
14387 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369470 1813 2

751 S KOLEEN AVE 9369551 2173 2
367 S LUM AVE 9252689 1262 2
763 S LUM AVE 9369422 1495 2
277 S MICHELLE AVE 9252669 2211 2

15435 W MIDDLETON AV 9419984 1571 2
287 S OLYMPIC ST 9253308 1340 2
295 S PARK AVE 9419986 2140 2

14540 W SAN JOAQUIN 9149558 2525 2
15900 W SAN JOAQUIN 9369336 1502 2
14291 W SHERI ST 9369403 936 2
14507 W SUNSET AVE 9252357 1377 2
14560 W SUNSET AVE 9252375 1197 2

349 S THOMAS AVE 9252731 1443 2
211 S WALNUT AVE 10427703 714 2

14049 W WHITESBRIDGE 14177615 679 2
14136 W B ST 9252844 2512 3
14855 W B ST 9419899 2068 3
16172 W BOTELHO AVE 9369265 990 3
14468 W CHARDONAY AV 9253111 1709 3
14320 W E ST 9252932 2513 3
16085 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369279 242 3

571 S KENNETH AVE 9252368 965 3
15891 W MIDDLETON AV 9252424 1533 3
16175 W NATALIE AVE 9369290 1836 3
14503 W SAN JOAQUIN 9253137 1209 3
14290 W SHERI ST 9253125 1168 3
14578 W STANISLAUS A 9149586 1765 3
14581 W STANISLAUS A 9149587 1833 3
15931 W SUNSET AVE 9252387 1334 3

22



Leak Notification Page 3 of 6

House #
Meter 

Serial #
Present 

Read Notice #Street Address
14058 W TAYLOR ST 9252900 1136 3

463 S THOMAS AVE 9252756 1053 3
16160 W TROY AVE 9252624 1100 3

699 S 16TH ST 9252929 2080 30
16075 W ALLYSON AVE 9369234 588 30

798 S ALMOND AVE 9369538 1070 30
14304 W B ST 9149598 1193 30

392 BURGUNDY ST 9253152 1525 30
15823 W E ST 9419947 1784 30
14450 W G ST 9252923 1310 30

551 S MICHELLE AVE 9252407 1072 30
14508 PALM CT 9369149 708 30
14601 W SAN JOAQUIN 9369411 1574 30
14551 W STANISLAUS A 9253228 2157 30
14475 W SUNSET AVE 9252801 1494 30
14311 W TAYLOR ST 9252859 3073 30
14329 W B ST 9419870 1021 PG

520 BURGUNDY ST 9252996 2417 PG
14352 W CHAD CT 9253104 1383 PG
15766 W E ST 9419857 2136 PG
14247 W G ST 9252971 2323 PG

264 S JOSEPH AVE 9252737 2463 PG
546 S LUM DR 9149664 1026 PG

15726 W MIDDLETON AV 9252398 1745 PG
240 S SUSAN AVE 9252551 1598 PG

First Notice 35
Second Notice 27
Final Notice 17
30 Day Citation 13
Pending Fine 9
Fines Issued 48
   (Not Published)

23



Leak Notification Page 4 of 6

House #
Meter 

Serial #
Present 

Read Notice #Street Address

598 S 16TH ST 9252853 541 1
733 S 16TH ST 9252870 1702 1

15807 W B ST 9369346 1276 1
356 BOYD AVE 9252506 1227 1

14233 W C ST 9252786 812 1
15701 W CALIFORNIA A 9252507 2289 1

434 CARMEL DR 9419916 1932 1
14344 W CHAD CT 9253107 1320 1

363 S DEL NORTE AVE 9252718 1482 1
15837 W E ST 9419921 1175 1
15922 W E ST 9419944 1213 1
16070 W E ST 9369192 501 1
14570 W EL MAR AVE 9149555 869 1
15888 W EL MAR AVE 9369520 1559 1

566 S LUM DR 9149651 1044 1
1705 S MADERA AVE 12294831 105 1

16055 W MALLORI AVE 9369209 227 1
459 S MANOR DR 9420000 894 1
337 S MERLOT AVE 10427794 830 1
582 S MICHELLE AVE 9252400 1685 1
839 S MICHELLE AVE 9252747 1923 1

14546 PALM CT 9369136 1120 1
16045 W SAN JOAQUIN 9252533 2093 1
14208 W SHERI ST 9253203 1745 1
14302 W SHERI ST 9149592 1361 1
14588 W STANISLAUS A 9419865 1711 1
15942 W STANISLAUS A 9252726 1911 1
14577 W SUNSET AVE 9253278 1361 1
15898 W SUNSET AVE 9252392 1426 1

748 S 16TH ST 9253196 1586 2
774 S 16TH ST 9253094 955 2

15905 W B ST 9369310 1221 2
262 S BORDEAUX AVE 9253300 1551 2

16080 W BRIAN AVE 9252599 3101 2
599 BURGUNDY ST 9253048 1236 2

14286 W C ST 9252892 986 2
14301 W C ST 9252905 1120 2
14585 W CHARDONAY AV 9253221 1534 2

371 S DEL NORTE AVE 9252511 1131 2
15964 W E ST 9419939 1564 2
14532 W EL MAR AVE 9369415 1082 2
15859 W EL MAR AVE 10427697 1735 2

November 24, 2015 Meter Reading

24



Leak Notification Page 5 of 6

House #
Meter 

Serial #
Present 

Read Notice #Street Address
14328 W F ST 9252994 868 2
14340 W F ST 9252957 1565 2

432 S GOLDENROD AVE 12294830 72 2
825 S JOSEPH AVE 9149667 1366 2

14337 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369472 3048 2
15668 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419888 2082 2
16051 W MATTHEW AVE 9149670 1063 2

565 MCKENNA CT 9252967 1608 2
271 S PARK AVE 9369532 1947 2

14298 W SHERI ST 9252888 1268 2
14541 W SUNSET AVE 9252474 1459 2
14557 W SUNSET AVE 9252374 2186 2

839 S SUSAN AVE 9149663 1124 2
544 WALNUT CT 9419960 1473 2
557 WALNUT CT 9419996 979 2

15838 W BOTELHO AVE 9369131 833 3
517 BURGUNDY ST 9252999 2040 3

15650 W CALIFORNIA A 9252704 1800 3
14299 W F ST 9252828 1636 3
14474 W G ST 9253023 677 3

549 GURDWARA AVE 9253019 1442 3
574 GURDWARA AVE 9253047 2083 3
569 MCKENNA CT 9252970 1552 3
215 S MERLOT AVE 9252846 1574 3

15920 W MIDDLETON AV 9252703 1274 3
287 S OLYMPIC ST 9253308 1351 3

14540 W SAN JOAQUIN 9149558 2540 3
14303 W SHERI ST 9149589 1136 3
14507 W SUNSET AVE 9252357 1389 3
15920 W SUNSET AVE 9252386 1266 3

349 S THOMAS AVE 9252731 1446 3
211 S WALNUT AVE 10427703 727 3

15692 WOOTEN CT 9252699 1326 3
422 S 2ND ST 9419891 1500 30

14855 W B ST 9419899 2086 30
16172 W BOTELHO AVE 9369265 1009 30
14468 W CHARDONAY AV 9253111 1714 30
14320 W E ST 9252932 2529 30
14344 W E ST 9252984 1554 30
16085 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369279 244 30

571 S KENNETH AVE 9252368 967 30
277 S MICHELLE AVE 9252669 2244 30

15891 W MIDDLETON AV 9252424 1542 30
14503 W SAN JOAQUIN 9253137 1215 30

276 S SISKIYOU AVE 9369500 1302 30

25



Leak Notification Page 6 of 6

House #
Meter 

Serial #
Present 

Read Notice #Street Address
14581 W STANISLAUS A 9149587 1846 30
15448 W SUNSET AVE 9419878 1643 30
15931 W SUNSET AVE 9252387 1339 30
14058 W TAYLOR ST 9252900 1143 30

463 S THOMAS AVE 9252756 1061 30
16160 W TROY AVE 9252624 1107 30
16075 W ALLYSON AVE 9369234 634 P
14304 W B ST 9149598 1202 P

392 BURGUNDY ST 9253152 1530 P
15823 W E ST 9419947 1794 P
14475 W SUNSET AVE 9252801 1514 P
14311 W TAYLOR ST 9252859 3085 P
14061 W WHITESBRIDGE 13019908 2140 P

First Notice 29
Second Notice 28
Final Notice 18
30 Day Citation 18
Pending Fine 7
Fines Issued 47

26



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of November 30, 2015 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             (150,000.00)     -                   -                         1,487.67          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               (50,000.00)      -                   -                         371.92            

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               (97,000.00)      -                   534.96            

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)     -                   -                         350.96            

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               (99,000.00)      -                   -                         773.56            

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)     -                   -                         1,134.25          

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00               95,000.00        95,051.30               219.04            

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               51,000.00        51,094.35               341.42            

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               48,000.00        48,092.64               333.24            

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,063.00             252.05            

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00        47,512.30               466.14            

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,403.00             495.89            

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       202,062.00             1,865.21          

Ally Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 10/2/14 10/11/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,366.00             476.30            

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.00% 11/12/14 11/14/16 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,302.40               483.95            

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00        53,317.47               244.40            

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       196,993.72             739.44            

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,520.38               444.62            

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,798.56             1,375.21          

Cap One NA Mclean VA 615-030525-245 1.15% 7/22/15 7/24/17 -                         150,000.00      150,000.00       150,001.50             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        99,128.96               826.15            

Whitney Bank Gulfport MS 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/12/15 8/14/17 -                         50,000.00        50,000.00        50,081.00               

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       151,974.00             1,264.52          

Ally Bank Midvale UT CD 615-030525-245 1.25% 9/17/15 9/18/17 -                         99,000.00        99,000.00        99,190.08               

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,451.20               483.95            

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,528.66               564.57            

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.25% 1/22/15 1/22/18 100,000.00             100,000.00       99,951.00               619.86            

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,357.12             1,562.74          

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,540.64             625.10            

Discover Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.15% 4/8/15 4/9/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,483.54               565.04            

Everbank CD Jacksonville FL 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/13/18 150,000.00             150,000.00       149,014.50             827.26            

Rollstone Bank Fitchburg MA 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/16/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       246,340.88             1,367.74          

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,789.30               568.13            

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00               97,000.00        98,069.91               817.72            

American Express Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/14/14 8/14/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,071.54               777.56            

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.55% 3/26/15 3/26/19 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,101.92               765.74            

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00             248,000.00       249,619.44             2,362.45          

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00             200,000.00       200,846.00             -                  

ST Bank of India CD Chicago IL 615-030525-245 2.15% 8/18/15 8/19/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,621.00             

Discover Greenwood 615-030525-245 2.00% 9/30/15 9/30/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,293.00             

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 2.15% 11/13/14 11/13/19 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,618.00             1,083.84          

Synchrony Draper UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 3/13/15 3/13/20 150,000.00             150,000.00       149,502.00             1,474.52          

JP Morgan Chase Bank 615-030525-245 2.10% 3/31/15 3/31/20 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,020.58               518.73            

Comenity Bank Jumbo Formerly World Finl Network Bank DE615-030525-245 2.10% 6/10/15 6/10/20 200,000.00             200,000.00       198,830.00             1,668.49          

Amex Centurion Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 2.30% 6/24/15 6/24/20 52,000.00               52,000.00        51,683.84               -                  

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 2.20% 6/24/15 6/24/20 46,000.00               46,000.00        45,719.86               -                  

Capital One NA Mclean VA 615-030525-245 2.30% 8/12/15 8/12/20 -                         97,000.00        97,000.00        97,535.44               

Average Rate 1.45%
Subtotal - CD's 5,048,000.00          -                  -                       5,048,000.00    5,059,942.03          31,134.34        

27



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of November 30, 2015 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/15 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,000.00               269.81            

Local Agency Investment Fund
2,000,000.00   2,000,000.00    2,000,000.00          1,137.86          

Subtotal - LAIF -                         2,000,000.00   -                       2,000,000.00    2,000,000.00          1,137.86          

Central Valley Comm Bank CD
1.34 6/8/12 6/8/17 200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             455.23            

Total CD and Local Agency Investments 5,347,000.00          2,000,000.00   -                       7,347,000.00    7,358,942.03          32,997.24        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                         -                   

(City of Kerman) 152,606.85             152,606.85       152,606.85             -                  
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 152,606.85             -                  -                       152,606.85       152,606.85             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 3,606,160.43          3,606,160.43    
Interest 7/31/15 320.39            320.39             320.39            

8/31/15 103.27            103.27             103.27            
9/30/15 96.45              96.45               96.45              

10/31/15 59.98              59.98               59.98              
11/30/15 44.61              44.61               44.61              

-                   -                  
Transfers In/(Out) 7/7/15 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       

7/10/15 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       
7/14/15 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)     
7/23/15 (150,000.00)     (150,000.00)     

To LAIF 7/28/15 (2,000,000.00)  (2,000,000.00)  
9/17/15 (250,000.00)     (250,000.00)     

10/14/15 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)     
11/12/15 (60,000.00)      (60,000.00)       
11/17/15 (200,000.00)     (200,000.00)     

3,606,160.43          (2,959,375.30)  -                       646,785.13       646,785.13             624.70            

Subtotal All City Investments 5,248,000.00          -                  -                       5,248,000.00    5,259,942.03          31,589.57        

Total Investments 5,499,606.85          2,000,000.00   -                       7,499,606.85    7,511,548.88          32,997.24        
Market Value Adjustment 11,942.03               

2,000,000.00    
2,000,000.00    

-                   

28



 
 

 City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Resolution Designating City Manager John Kunkel as an Additional Check Signer for City Bank Accounts 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council by motion adopt resolution authorizing City Manager John Kunkel as an additional check signer for City bank 
accounts and removing temporary appointment of Councilwoman Armstrong. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Historically the City Manager is an authorized signer on the City’s bank account. Due to the vacancy Councilwoman 
Armstrong was appointed temporaily until the permanent City Manager was hired. John Kunkel was hired full time 
effective December 1, 2015 therefore he should be added to the City bank accounts. 
 

OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The City Manager, City Clerk and Mayor are authorized signers on the City’s bank accounts. Now that City Manager 
John Kunkel is full time, staff is recommending Mr. Kunkel be added and remove the temporary appointment of 
Councilwoman Armstrong.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution  

29



City Council Staff Report                             Page 2 of 2 
Authorizing Check Signers for City Bank Accounts 
  

ATTACHMENT ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN AUTHORIZING  
CHECK SIGNERS FOR CITY BANK ACCOUNTS 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City pays expenses using warrants or checks; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds it necessary to have the City Manager as an additional check signer along 
with the Mayor and City Clerk; and 
 

 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Kerman to add an additional signer to ensure daily operations 
are not impacted during the absence of the other check signers. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the addition of City Manager 
John Kunkel as a signer for City bank accounts. 
 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
16th day of December, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
        ABSENT:  
      ABSTAIN:  
 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
             
        Stephen B. Hill 
        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
 

30



 
 City of Kerman 

“Where Community Comes First” 
 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY CLERK 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Marci Reyes, City Clerk 
Subject: Resolution Appointing Members to the Planning Commission and Announcement of Votes 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution appointing three applicants to the Planning Commission for three-year terms 
ending December 31, 2018. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The Kerman Planning Commission has three Commisioners which terms will be ending on December 31, 2015. The 
appointments to fill these vacancies will be for a three-year term ending December 31, 2018.  
 
The announcement for the vacancies was published in the Kerman News and posted on the City website from 
November 4 through November 25 with a deadline of December 4. 
 
Four applications were received by the December 4, 2015 deadline from Leopoldo Espino, inclumbents Eric Kehler, 
Robert D. Epperson, and Kevin Nehring. The applications are attached for Council review. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Applicants were invited to attend the meeting, introduce themselves, state briefly, why they are seeking appointment 
to the Commission and answer any questions the Council may have.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Applications 
B. Resolution 

  

31



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
 

Attachment ‘A’

 
 
 

32



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  
 
 

33



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
  

34



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
  

35



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
  

36



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
  

37



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
  

38



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
  

39



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
 
 
 
 
  

40



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
  

41



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

 
  

42



City Council Staff Report   Page 13 of 13 
Planning Commission Appointments 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

RESOLUTION 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF VOTE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council appoints members to the Planning Commission and received four applications 
to fill three vacancies ending December 31, 2018; and  
 
 WHEREAS, at the December 16, 2015 City Council meeting the City Council voted to fill the two vacancies  
with the following appointments: 
 
  ______________________________, ______________________________ and 
_________________________________. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN as follows: appointing 
______________________________, ______________________________ and 
_________________________________ to the Kerman Planning Commission for three-year terms ending 
December 31, 2018. 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council oft eh City of Kerman held on the 
16th Day of December 2015 and passed with the following vote: 
 

 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________ 
        Stephen B. Hill 
        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

43



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving the Purchase of Easements for the Vineland Avenue Widening Project and 

Accepting the Easements for Public Use 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt the resolution approving the purchase of easements for the Vineland Avenue Widening 
Project and accepting the easements for public use. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City’s Vineland Avenue Widening Project requires the acquisition of a pedestrian easement and public utility 
easement on the west side of Vineland Avenue to accommodate the proposed street improvements. Council has 
previously authorized an offer of $29,037.00, based on appraised fair market value and additional consideration of 
the value of the almond trees to be removed, for acquisition of the easements. The property owner from which the 
easements are to be acquired, Mr. Bill Tolmachoff, has accepted the City’s offer and signed the Real Property 
Purchase and Sale Agreement and Deeds of Easement. Council must approve the purchase of the easements and 
accept the easements for public use to move forward with the acquisition. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
Due to encroachment of the pedestrian easement into an existing Fresno Irrigation District (FID) pipeline easement, 
FID will require the City to enter into a Common Use Agreement with FID. The Common Use Agreement will be 
presented to Council for approval at a later date.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Vineland Avenue from Kearney Boulevard to approximately 700 feet north consists of one 12 foot wide travel lane in 
each direction and a 12 foot wide landscaped median. This segment does not include bike lanes, parking lanes, and 
has not been improved with curb and gutter and sidewalk (permanent concrete sidewalk constructed on east side 
only). The Vineland Avenue Widening Project will widen the street to ultimate width, including curb, gutter, and 
sidewalk. The City has allocated $316,400 in Federal RSTP Lifeline funds for this project. 
 
In order to accommodate the improvements on the west side of Vineland, it was necessary to acquire a pedestrian 
easement and public utility easement from the property on the west side of Vineland. The pedestrian easement will 
allow for the construction of the proposed concrete sidewalk and the public utility easement will be used for the 
relocation of the overhead utility poles. The property from which easements will be acquired, 14510 W. Kearney 
Boulevard, is owned by Mr. Bill Tolmachoff. 

44



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  
 
The fair market value of the easements to be acquired from Mr. Tolmachoff was determined to be $27,800 by the 
appraisal prepared by Real Property Analysts, at the request of the City. Council also authorized an additional 
$1,237 in compensation for the removal of 11 almond trees on Mr. Tolmachoff’s property, bringing the total 
monetary compensation to $29,037.00. Mr. Tolmachoff has requested that the wood from the almond trees be left 
on his property for use as firewood. Based on the compensation offered, Mr. Tolmachoff has agreed to the sale of 
the required pedestrian and public utility easements to the City. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The budget for the project includes funds for easement acquisition. The acquisition of easements will be funded with 
Local Transportation Funds. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
 

 
  

45



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF EASEMENTS FOR THE VINELAND AVENUE WIDENING PROJECT 

AND ACCEPTING THE EASEMENTS FOR PUBLIC USE 
 

WHEREAS, the Vineland Avenue Widening Project will widen Vineland Avenue from Kearney Boulevard to 
approximately 700 feet north; and 

WHEREAS, the Project requires the acquisition of two easements, as shown on the attached Deeds of Easement in 
Exhibit 1, from Assessor’s Parcel Number 023-130-34, owned by Mr. Bill Tolmachoff; and  

WHEREAS; the City has allocated Federal Regional Surface Transportation funds to the project; and 
WHEREAS, the use of Federal funds required the City to follow federal guidelines and requirements for the acquisition 

of right of way; and 
WHEREAS; the City enlisted the services of a qualified appraiser and review appraiser to establish the fair market 

value of the required easements in accordance with Federal guidelines; and  
WHEREAS, the Appraisal Report prepared by Real Property Analysts, dated October 2, 2015, established the fair 

market value to be $27,800; and 
WHEREAS; the property owner  requested, and City Council authorized, additional compensation in the amount of 

$1,237 as additional compensation for the take of 11 almond trees; and 
WHEREAS; the City has made an offer in the amount of $29,037.00 to the property owner for the purchase of the 

easements and the offer has been accepted by the property owner; and 
WHEREAS; the City Engineer recommends the approval of the purchase of the easements from the property owner for 

the amount of $29,037.00. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY resolves as follows: 
 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated by reference. 
 
Section 2. The purchase of the easements, as shown on the attached Deeds of Easement in Exhibit 1, from Mr. 

Bill Tolmachoff, as Trustee of the William John Tolmachoff Living Trust, U/A dated December 23, 
2014, for the amount of $29,037.00 is hereby approved and the City Manager is authorized to sign 
the Real Property Purchase and Sale Agreement, included as Exhibit 1.  

 
Section 3. By order of the City Council the interests in real property conveyed to the City from Mr. Bill 

Tolmachoff, as Trustee of the William John Tolmachoff Living Trust, U/A dated December 23, 2014, 
as shown on the attached Deeds of Easement in Exhibit 1 are hereby accepted by the City of 
Kerman for public use.   

46



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

 
Section 4. The City of Kerman consents to the recordation of the Deeds of Easement with the Fresno County 

Recorder’s Office. 
 
Section 5. The City Clerk shall affix a certificate attesting to this resolution to the Deed of Easement. 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 16th 

day of December, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
              
        Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

47



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

 
Exhibit 1 

 

48



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

49



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

50



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

51



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

52



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

53



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

54



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

55



City Council Staff Report   Page 13 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

56



City Council Staff Report   Page 14 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

57



City Council Staff Report   Page 15 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

58



City Council Staff Report   Page 16 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

59



City Council Staff Report   Page 17 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

60



City Council Staff Report   Page 18 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

61



City Council Staff Report   Page 19 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

62



City Council Staff Report   Page 20 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

63



City Council Staff Report   Page 21 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

64



City Council Staff Report   Page 22 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

65



City Council Staff Report   Page 23 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

66



City Council Staff Report   Page 24 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

67



City Council Staff Report   Page 25 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

68



City Council Staff Report   Page 26 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

69



City Council Staff Report   Page 27 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

70



City Council Staff Report   Page 28 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

71



City Council Staff Report   Page 29 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

72



City Council Staff Report   Page 30 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

73



City Council Staff Report   Page 31 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

74



City Council Staff Report   Page 32 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

75



City Council Staff Report   Page 33 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

76



City Council Staff Report   Page 34 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

77



City Council Staff Report   Page 35 of 35 
Vineland Widening Easements 
  

 

78


	Agenda
	Minutes
	November 18, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Water Conservation Leak Notification Report
	Leak Notification Report

	Monthly Investment Report Ending November 30, 2015
	Investment Report

	Resolution Designating City Manager John Kunkel as an Additional Check Signer for City Bank Accounts
	Staff Report - City Manager as Check Signer

	Resolution Appointing Members to the Planning Commission and Announcement of Votes
	Staff Report - Planning Commission Appointments

	Resolution Approving the Purchase of Easements for the Vineland Avenue Widening Project and Accepting the Easements  for Public Use
	Staff Report - Vineland Easements




